
NOTICE

OF

MEETING

VISITOR MANAGEMENT FORUM
will meet on

MONDAY, 5TH DECEMBER, 2016

At 6.30 pm

in the

CASTLE HOTEL WINDSOR, 18 HIGH STREET, WINDSOR SL4 1LJ, 

TO: MEMBERS OF THE VISITOR MANAGEMENT FORUM

COUNCILLORS COLIN RAYNER (CHAIRMAN), DAVID BURBAGE (VICE-CHAIRMAN), 
GERRY CLARK, JESSE GREY, NICOLA PRYER AND SHAMSUL SHELIM

SUBSTITUTE MEMBERS
COUNCILLORS MICHAEL AIREY, CHRISTINE BATESON, PAUL LION, EILEEN QUICK, 
JUDITH DIMENT AND LYNDA YONG

Karen Shepherd - Democratic Services Manager - Issued: Thursday 24th November 2016 

Members of the Press and Public are welcome to attend Part I of this meeting. The agenda is available on the Council’s 
web site at www.rbwm.gov.uk or contact the Panel Administrator Tanya Leftwich 01628 796345

Fire Alarm - In the event of the fire alarm sounding or other emergency, please leave the building quickly and calmly 
by the nearest exit.  Do not stop to collect personal belongings and do not use the lifts.  Congregate in the Town Hall 
Car Park, Park Street, Maidenhead (immediately adjacent to the Town Hall) and do not re-enter the building until told 
to do so by a member of staff.

Recording of Meetings – The Council allows the filming, recording and photography of public Council meetings. This 
may be undertaken by the Council itself, or any person attending the meeting. By entering the meeting room you are 
acknowledging that you may be audio or video recorded and that this recording will be available for public viewing on 
the RBWM website. If you have any questions regarding the council’s policy, please speak to the Democratic 
Services or Legal representative at the meeting.

Public Document Pack

http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/
http://www.rbwm.gov.uk/


AGENDA

PART I
ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 

NO

1.  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

To receive any apologies for absence.
 

-

2.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

To receive declarations of interests from Members of the Forum in respect of
any item to be considered at the meeting.
 

7 - 8

3.  MINUTES

To note the Part I minutes of the meeting of the Panel held on 22 September 
2016.
 

9 - 12

4.  WELCOME TO CASTLE HOTEL

By John Willcock, General Manager (Castle Hotel, Windsor).
 

-

5.  VISITOR MANAGER UPDATE

By the Visitor Manager, Julia White.
 

-

6.  DISCUSSION ITEM:  TOURISM POST BREXIT - WHAT ARE THE 
LOCAL EFFECTS?

-

7.  FORUM NAME

By the Chairman.
 

-

8.  ITEM SUGGESTIONS FOR FUTURE FORUMS

The Forum is invited to make item suggestions for future meetings.
 

-

9.  DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS

 To be confirmed.
 

-

LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 - EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

To consider passing the following resolution:-

“That under Section 100(A)(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the remainder of the meeting whilst discussion takes place
on items 10 & 11 on the grounds that it involves the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in in Paragraphs 1-7 of part I of Schedule 12A
of the Act"

-





PRIVATE MEETING

ITEM SUBJECT PAGE 
NO

10.  MINUTES 

To note the Part II minutes of the meeting of the Forum held on 22 September 
2016.

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

13 - 14

11.  BUSINESS UPDATES 

Round Table from Visitor Management Forum members.

(Not for publication by virtue of Paragraph 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 
12A of the Local Government Act 1972)

-





This page is intentionally left blank



MEMBERS’ GUIDANCE NOTE

DECLARING INTERESTS IN MEETINGS

DISCLOSABLE PECUNIARY INTERESTS (DPIs)

DPIs include:

 Any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation carried on for profit or gain.
 Any payment or provision of any other financial benefit made in respect of any 

expenses occurred in carrying out member duties or election expenses.
 Any contract under which goods and services are to be provided/works to be executed 

which has not been fully discharged.
 Any beneficial interest in land within the area of the relevant authority.
 Any license to occupy land in the area of the relevant authority for a month or longer.
 Any tenancy where the landlord is the relevant authority, and the tenant is a body in 

which the relevant person has a beneficial interest.
 Any beneficial interest in securities of a body where 

a) that body has a piece of business or land in the area of the relevant authority, 
and 
b) either (i) the total nominal value of the securities exceeds £25,000 or one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that body or (ii) the total nominal 
value of the shares of any one class belonging to the relevant person exceeds one 
hundredth of the total issued share capital of that class.

PREJUDICIAL INTERESTS
This is an interest which a reasonable fair minded and informed member of the public would 
reasonably believe is so significant that it harms or impairs your ability to judge the public 
interest. That is, your decision making is influenced by your interest that you are not able to 
impartially consider only relevant issues.  

DECLARING INTERESTS
If you have not disclosed your interest in the register, you must make the declaration of 
interest at the beginning of the meeting, or as soon as you are aware that you have a DPI or  
Prejudicial Interest.  If you have already disclosed the interest in your Register of Interests 
you are still required to disclose this in the meeting if it relates to the matter being discussed.  
A member with a DPI or Prejudicial Interest may make representations at the start of the 
item but  must not take part in discussion or vote at a meeting. The term ‘discussion’ 
has been taken to mean a discussion by the members of the committee or other body 
determining the issue.  You should notify Democratic Services before the meeting of your 
intention to speak. In order to avoid any accusations of taking part in the discussion or vote, 
you must move to the public area, having made your representations. 

If you have any queries then you should obtain advice from the Legal or Democratic Services 
Officer before participating in the meeting.

If the interest declared has not been entered on to your Register of Interests, you must notify 
the Monitoring Officer in writing within the next 28 days following the meeting. 

7

Agenda Item 2



This page is intentionally left blank



VISITOR MANAGEMENT FORUM

THURSDAY, 22 SEPTEMBER 2016

PRESENT: Councillors Colin Rayner (Chairman), Jesse Grey, Nicola Pryer and 
Shamsul Shelim

Also in attendance: Majella Baldacchino (Windsor Racecourse), Tot Brill (Windsor 
Castle), Jill Britton (Windsor Great Park), Amanda Bryett (Windsor Tourist Guides), 
Janet Cole (Windsor Castle), Nick Day (The Crown Estate), Sharan Endsor 
(Copthorne), Ingrid Fernandes (Legoland), Wyatt Gates (South West Trains), Steve 
Harris (Fringilla), Jade Humphrey (Copthorne), Sunil Kalia (Jetset Coaches), Alan 
Mellins (Maidenhead Heritage Centre & Sterling Travel), Paul Sedgewick (Windsor 
Great Park), Rebecca Seear (Windsor Carriages), Anne Taylor (The Windsor & Eton 
Society), Sue Watts (Windsor Royal Shopping Centre), Don Yates (French Brothers)

Officers: Tanya Leftwich and Julia White

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

It was announced by the Chairman that the meeting would be recorded and posted to the 
web.

The Chairman welcomed everyone and thanked The Savill Garden for kindly hosting the 
meeting.  

Apologies for absence were received from Councillor David Burbage, Moor Hall Conference 
Centre (Claire Pearce), Professional Tourist Guides (Laura Comley-Smith), Royal Collection 
(Abbie Kirkwood),  The Runnymede on Thames Hotel (Louise Martin), Visions of History 
(Tony Howe), Windsor Castle (James Perowne), Windsor & Eton Tourist Guides (Bobbie 
Latter), Windsor Racecourse (Stuart Dorn), Windsor Welcome Tourist Guides (Hilary 
Thompson), Windsor Town Horse Drawn Carriages Ltd (Peter Langthorne) and Windsor Town 
Horse Drawn Carriages Ltd (Svetlana Langthorne).

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

None received.

MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on 5 July 2016 were agreed as a correct record subject to the 
following amendment:

 Members were informed that major works were planned during summer 2017 which 
would be quite a challenge as it equated to a loss of between 40-50% of train services.  

WELCOME AND UPDATE ON TOURISM ACTIVITY ACROSS WINDSOR GREAT 
PARK 

The Operations Manager – The Crowne Estate, Nick Day, welcomed everyone to the venue 
and informed the Forum that he arrived approximately nine / nine and a half years ago and 
wanted to develop this building and the tourist offering in the Great Park.   

9

Agenda Item 3



It was noted that nine and a half years ago visitors to the Great Park had not always been 
seen as an asset and were at best tolerated.  Something that the Operations Manager had 
been working on over the past eighteen months to two years was to  extend the welcome to 
the visitor.  

When counted it was noted that 5.5 – 6 million visitors visited the 4,800 acres of Windsor 
Great Park every year rather than the 2.5 million that had been predicted.  It was noted that 
the Crowne Estate had a responsibility to look after the 4,800 acres whilst ensuring visitors 
enjoyed the ‘green loveliness’.    

In the last financial year it was noted the Crowne Estate in Windsor had recorded a small profit 
for the first time ever.  It was noted that the Crowne Estate was the only company in the 
country that paid 100% tax.  The Operations Manager explained that the real priority was to 
protect and preserve the Windsor Great Park.  

With regard to the vision of the business it was noted that 40,000 visitors bought a ticket with a 
further 60,000 visiting The Savill Garden via memberships which left 5.4 million people visiting 
the Park without paying.  It was noted that the Operations Manager needed to find ways of 
generating income from the 5.4 million visitors without  compromising the integrity of the Park.  
It was noted that the biggest single source of income from the estate was from property rental 
followed by car parking.     

It was noted that there were just under 12,500 members at The Savill Garden compared to 
1,800 in 2007.  The Operations Manager explained that they were looking to involve the local 
community more in what they did in the future.  It was noted that some market research had 
taken place in Virginia Water a few years ago which had resulted in a new burger van being 
installed, along with a visitors centre, nice toilets and an ice-cream unit which totalled a 
turnover of £7,500 per annum.  It was noted that the Operations Manager ensured a certain 
degree of facility was in the right place but that it did not destroy the surroundings.

It was noted that The Savill Garden was open free of charge over the winter months in 
December, January and February in order to encourage visitors.  The Operations Manager 
explained that on a busy day there were approximately 1,500 visitors at The Savill Garden 
which could be increased to 2,000 – 3,000.  It was noted that The Savill Garden needed to 
appeal to the younger and elderly market and that the gardens needed to be more fun.  
Members were informed that the gardens currently had a sculpture in it as part of the art 
garden season and that themes had been created this year.  

The Operations Manager explained that a lot of film crews visited The Savill Garden on a fairly 
regular basis which generated income for the estate and local companies.  

It was noted that new caterers had been introduced to The Savill Garden after 18 years and 
that the caterers were called Benugo.  Members were informed that catering would close 
down on the 7 January 2017 and open again at the end of March. 

Members were shown a short video of the Great Park.

In the ensuing discussion the following points were noted:
 That the Windsor Free Festival would not be returning.
 That the new keeper of the gardens at The Savill Garden had links with Kew Gardens.  
 That the coffee vehicle that had been located at the top of the Great Park would soon 

be relocated in the Great Park.

The Chairman thanked the Operations Manager for addressing the Forum and for his 
hospitality.

   

10



OVERVIEW OF THE WINDSOR CASTLE FUTURE PROGRAMME 

The Chairman welcomed the Future Programme Director, Royal Collection Trust (Tot Brill) to 
the meeting and invited her to address the Forum.

Members were given a short presentation on Windsor Castle’s Future Programme (January 
2017 – December 2019) which covered the following areas:

 Vision.
 Aims.
 Windsor Castle.

In the ensuing discussion the following points were noted:
 It was noted that Windsor Castle were designing something to stop people from having 

to queue out on the street outside the castle.  It was explained that booking online and 
timed visits were not something the castle was currently looking to do.

 It was noted that no change would take place to the Royal families privacy once the 
State Entrance was opened up to visitors.

 That a tester café had been in the Undercroft for one season in the past.
 That an Instagram account had been opened by the castle which was doing really well.
 That the castle wanted to increase visitor numbers at off-peak times, such as in 

February.  
 That the tour of the castle took approximately 1.5 hours.  
 That the castle did after hours / back stage tours at a premium.
 That 30 minutes early entry could be offered as an incentive to visitors staying in 

certain hotels for longer periods of time.  
 That group prices in to the castle were available.
 That a Windsor Castle & The Savill Garden joint ticket was available to purchase by 

the group market. It was noted that the Visitor Centre enabled visitors to tailor their 
tickets as part of packages.  

 That no new rooms would be opened in the castle.
 That there was probably more scope for partnership / association work.
 That visitors should be encouraged to come to Windsor by train where possible.
 It was suggested that the Coach Park could be offered a location just outside town with 

good facilities to free up some parking space in Windsor.
 That work at the castle would start in January and would be part of a two year 

programme.  It was noted that the works would not interrupt visitors to the castle.  

The Chairman thanked the Future Programme Director, Royal Collection Trust for her 
presentation.

VISITOR MANAGER UPDATE 

The Visitor Manager gave Members the highlights since the last meeting.

With regard to refurbishment of the Information Centre plans and a budget were being 
finalised.  It was noted that the Visitor Manager would soon be able to start planning the visual 
display which would include six digital advertising screens.  Members were informed that the 
Information Centre would probably be closed for three days for installation purposes.  

It was noted that the new Visitor Strategy was being written and that consultation meetings 
would be arranged in October and November.  

The Visitor Manager informed everyone present that she had yesterday received the latest 
economic impact report which she would circulate early next week.  It was noted that the 
Royal Borough had bucked the trend and increased overnight stays by nearly 4%,  It was 
noted that whilst overnight trips had increased day trips had reduced which was in line with the 
UK as a whole and the South East.  

11



Members were informed that the Social Media Strategy had just been finalised and that no 
comments had been received to date.  The Visitor Manager explained that she would need 
businesses content and imagery shortly.  

The Visitor Manager informed everyone present that the Tourism Development Day would be 
taking place on the 6th October and that this was her final call to people interested in attending 
the day.  It was noted that the networking time this year had been increased.  

In the ensuing discussion the following points were noted:
 That whilst Brighton had increased their footfall to 8 million the Royal Borough which 

was much smaller in size had achieved 7.5 million.
 That the Highways Overview & Scrutiny Panel had been tasked with finding an 

additional 1000 parking spaces in Windsor which was hoped would help increase 
footfall.

The Chairman thanked the Visitor Manager for her update.

DISCUSSION ITEM:  SHOULD THE VISITOR MANAGEMENT FORUM CHANGE 
NAME? 

The Chairman asked Forum Members whether they felt the Visitor Management Forum name 
should be changed as he felt it needed a better title.  It was noted that the Chairman felt that 
the Forum needed more tourism industries to attend these meetings and asked for 
suggestions.  

The following suggestions were noted:
 Experience Windsor.
 Tourism Development Forum.

The Chairman requested that this item be included in the next agenda.  

ITEM SUGGESTIONS FOR FUTURE FORUMS 

Members were asked to email any additional item suggestions for future meetings directly to 
the Visitor Manager, Julia White at julia.white@rbwm.gov.uk and the Clerk, Tanya Leftwich at 
tanya.leftwich@rbwm.gov.uk 

DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 

The Chairman informed Members that the date of the next meetings were as follows:

 5 December 2016 (6.30pm start) – venue to be confirmed.
 30 March 2017 (6.30pm start) – venue to be confirmed.

The Forum was reminded that the final race day of the season at Windsor Racecourse would 
be taking place on the 17 October 2016 with the gates opening at midday and the racing 
starting at 2pm.

The Chairman also reminded the Forum that on the 10 October 2016 it was the Windsor and 
Maidenhead Young Farmers Club for the over 18’s and under 26’s. 

The meeting, which began at 6.30 pm, finished at 8.20 pm

CHAIRMAN……………………………….

DATE………………………………..........
12

file:///U:/Groups/MEMBERS/DOCS/DOCS-A2M/Forums/Visitor%20Management/Minutes/151202%20-%20Part%20I.doc#mailto:julia.white@rbwm.gov.uk
file:///U:/Groups/MEMBERS/DOCS/DOCS-A2M/Forums/Visitor%20Management/Minutes/151202%20-%20Part%20I.doc#mailto:tanya.leftwich@rbwm.gov.uk


Document is Restricted

13

Agenda Item 10
By virtue of paragraph(s) 2 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	2 Declarations of Interest
	3 Minutes
	10 Minutes

